UNITED

NATIONS C RC

Convention on the Distr.
. . CGENERAL
Rights of the Child

CRC/ ¢/ SR 337
10 Cctober 1996

Oiginal: ENGISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Thirteenth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 337t h MEETI NG

Held at the Pal ais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Tuesday, 8 Cctober 1996, at 10 a.m

Chai rperson: Ms. BELEMBAOGO

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (conti nued)

Initial report of Slovenia

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Conmittee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly
after the end of the session.

GE. 96- 18527 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR 337
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS OF STATES PARTI ES (agenda item 4) (continued)

Initial report of Slovenia (CRC T 8/Add.25; HRI/CORE 1/ Add. 35; CRC/ C. 12/ WP. 2)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, M. Bebler, Ms. Val ent&i¢
M. lLogar, Ms. Brvar, Ms. Ba8i& Ms. Tadtanovski and Ms. Vovk-Zel enznik
Sl ovenia) took places at the Conmittee table.

2. M. BEBLER (Sl ovenia), introducing his country's report, said that

Sl oveni a attached great inportance to the Convention as the nmain internationa
instrument for the defence of the rights of the child, both per se and as a
nmenber of society. The Constitution was the basic Slovenian | egal text
defining the rights of the child: articles 14 to 65 on human rights and
fundanmental freedons included references to the rights of the child as set out
in the Convention. Article 56 stated that children shoul d enjoy specia
protection and care, as well as human rights and fundanmental freedons
consistent with their age and | evel of maturity. Various aspects of child
rights were covered in | egislation which dealt specifically with famly
policy, social security, health care, education and sport, enploynent,
culture, internal affairs and justice and which had been updated and adapted
since 1990 to neet European standards.

3. Special attention was being paid to social policy programmes with an

i npact on children, especially those ainmed at inproving their quality of life
and econonic conditions. For exanple, the proportion of GDP spent on famly
policy progranmes had risen from21.23 per cent in 1992 to 1.45 per cent

in 1995. The practical inplementation of children's rights was handl ed by
public institutes, non-governmental organizations and private individuals,
acting on the principle of free choice of services and equal representation of
the public, private and voluntary sectors in their provision

4. Direct |legal and administrative nechanisns were available to citizens for
the filing of conplaints. Children's rights issues could also be referred to
the Hunman Ri ghts Orbudsman. O her nonitoring nmechani sns i ncluded public

servi ces inspection bodies, supervisory and counselling services, governnent
institutes and coordi nati ng bodi es. Sone nechani sns for nonitoring socia
phenonena in chil dhood were still being devel oped.

5. The Convention had been translated into Sl ovene and published in the
Oficial Gazette and other documents. The principles it enbodi ed had been
used in the preparation of new | egislation and programres to benefit children
State institutions, non-governnental organizations and private individuals had
made every effort since the entry into force of the Convention to pronote

awar eness of the rights of the child anong the general public and in the

rel evant CGovernnent offices.

6. Sl oveni a worked closely with UNI CEF, UNHCR, WHO, the 1LO and ot her

i nternational organizations on matters affecting children. UNHCR and WHO bot h
had offices in the country. The CGovernnent had worked particularly closely
with UNICEF and UNHCR in dealing with the large influx of refugees from
war-torn areas of forner Yugosl avi a.



CRC/ ¢/ SR. 337

page 3
7. Sl oveni a consi dered the submission of its initial report as only part of
its ongoing effort to inplement the Convention. It intended to publish the

text of the report and subsequently to open the subject to public debate. The
del egation of Slovenia had brought with it a considerable quantity of
additional information and publications which would be nade available to the
Commi tt ee.

8. Ms. BADRAN said she particularly appreciated the statistical information
provided in the supplenmentary informati on docunent submitted by the Governnent
of Slovenia in response to the list of issues. She also welconed the
information that Slovenia intended to reviewits reservation to the Convention
with a viewto its possible wthdrawal.

9. A nunber of nechani sns had been nentioned in the report for coordinating
and nonitoring child rights issues. Wat arrangenents were in place for

coordi nating the operation of those nechani sns thensel ves? Wat was the
general relationship between non-governnental organizations and the
Governnent, in addition to the part such organizations had played in
preparation of the report? She understood that a round-table nmeeting on
children had been hel d and asked what probl ens had been di scussed and what
action would be taken to deal with them Had any national plan of action been
prepared as a consequence of the Wrld Sumit for Chil dren?

10. M. MOVBESHORA asked how | ocal and external non-governmenta
organi zati ons and ot her persons or bodies involved in work with children had
contributed to the preparation of the report.

11. Ms. EUFEM O noting from paragraph 8 (g) of the core docunent
(HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 35) that only 4.3 per cent of the population had a university
education, asked whether social workers were expected to have a university
education and what the total nunber of social workers was. Wat was the
proportion of social workers to the popul ation? Further details on how the
social work centres operated, particularly at the rmunicipal |evel, would be
wel cone. The municipalities appeared to have wi de powers at the |ocal |evel
What control, if any, did the central authorities have over their actions?

12. She asked whether, during the preparation of the report, the various
mnistries involved had reviewed the action taken since the ratification of
the Convention to determ ne any deficiencies and ascertain what renedial
action should be taken in future.

13. Ms. VOVK-ZELEZNIK (Sl ovenia), replying to Ms. Badran, said that

two CGovernnent conm ssions, the Conmission on the Prevention of Child Abuse
and the Childhood |Issues Mnitoring Commission, were coordinating nonitoring
activities. The latter would al so be responsible for drawing up a nationa
pl an of action, as reconmended by the World Sumit for Children

14. The CGovernnent's work wi th non-governnmental organizati ons was coordi nated
t hrough a round table, which such organizations were invited to attend. In
addi ti on, sone 50 non-governnental organizations had been invited to revi ew
the initial report. As a result of those activities, a nunber of corrections
had been made to the text of the report.



CRC/ ¢/ SR. 337

page 4

15. Sl oveni a had 62 social work centres, which operated at the municipa

I evel . They were financed both by central budget allocations and by mnunici pa
contributions. They provided various services; they were al so authorized to
pay benefits under the Family Al owance Act. In their work with children, the

centres gave assistance to children and young people in difficult situations
and provi ded various progranmes for children with behavi oural disturbances.

16. The rel evant parts of the reported noted any deficiencies found in the
i mpl enentati on of the Convention. A plan of action would be prepared to
remedy those deficiencies; the current discussion with the Conmttee woul d
undoubt edly make a useful contribution to that effort.

17. M. MOMBESHORA asked whether the social work centres were staffed by
Cover nment enpl oyees or ot her personnel

18. Ms. EUFEM O asked whether the 62 social work centres were considered
adequate to cover the needs of all nunicipalities. Wat was the proportion of
soci al workers to the children and fanilies needing their services?

19. Ms. BADRAN asked what effect the change to a market econony had had on
children and whether they had been affected by the 10 days of warfare
following Slovenia's declaration of independence. Had programes for children
been affected by those two nmejor events?

20. M. KOOSOV said that the Convention was addressed not only to all levels
of CGovernnent and society as a whole, but also to children thensel ves.

Al t hough nost countries reporting to the Committee clained that sufficient

i nformati on was provided to children, schools and teacher training
institutions to create awareness of the Convention and provi ded docunentation
in support of those clains, nenbers of the Conmittee in their travels had
found that, in general, the mgjority of children they net were unaware of the
rights of the child or of the text of the Convention. How nuch real awareness
of those points had been generated in Slovenian children; were there any plans
for further efforts along those |ines?

21. Ms. VALENCG C (Slovenia) said that high-level qualifications had |ong
been required for social workers in Slovenia. University studies had been
mandatory for the past five years. There was a special training establishnent
for social workers which had the status of a university faculty. In addition
to the assistance provided to children by the social work centres, all primary
schools in Slovenia had, for the past 30 years, provided counselling teans for
children made up of teachers, social workers, psychol ogists and, where
necessary, paediatricians. There were sone 700 social workers practising in
Slovenia for a total population of 2 mllion

22. The reorgani zati on of the systemof |ocal administration carried out in
Sl ovenia two years previously had led to the creation of 145 nunicipalities.
The social work centres were active at the nunicipal |level, but each could
serve a nunmber of municipalities together. |In addition, sone counselling
centres operated at the regional |evel



CRC/ C/ SR 337
page 5

23. Since Slovenia was a small country, its legislation had been changed so
that basic activities could be funded and nonitored at the State |evel either
directly, through the various institutes under Government ministries, or
indirectly, through local comrunities.

24, Ref erence had been nmade to the concept of the child as a subject of |aw
and to the extent to which children were aware of their rights. She agreed
with M. Kolosov that children in some countries were often not fully

i nfornmed, but Slovenian children were aware of their rights and obligations
under the Convention. A nunber of mechani sms had been established to ensure
t he invol venent of children in the decision-making process. The Law on
Primary School s provided for conpul sory sessions, at all prinmary grade |evels,
during which children could present their views and reconmendati ons on
activities of concern to them |In addition, all heads of schools were

requi red to organi ze school parlianments, which had specific duties. At the
nmuni ci pal |evel, mayors and representati ves of school parlianents net every
year to discuss issues proposed by school children. Annual sessions of the
Children's Parlianent were convened by the National Assenbly with the
participation of children's deputies, representatives of all nunicipalities,
NGCs and CGovernnent mnisters. The conclusions of those discussions were
subsequently published and the foll ow up action taken on the previous year's
deci si ons was eval uated at each session

25. The M nistry of Education and Sport had published a booklet entitled
"School Rul es", which was based on the Convention and contained instructions
on the rights and obligations of schoolchildren, as well as practica

i nformati on on contact persons and organi zati ons offering professiona
assistance in areas of relevance to children. The Governnent intended to

di stribute 230,000 copies to all Slovenian school children, teachers and
parents. The publication of the booklet was regarded as an inportant step
forward in efforts to increase the popul ation's awareness of the rights of the
chi I d.

26. In an attenpt to offset the negative consequences of the transition to a
mar ket econony, which had inevitably affected the Iives of children in

Sl oveni a, the Parliament had adopted a resolution on famly policy granting

al | owances and child-care benefits to lowincone families. Allocations in the
State budget had al so been increased for day-care facilities, free textbooks
and school neals, extracurricular activities, foreign |anguage training and
conputer education. Counselling centres, staffed by professionals, had been
established to treat children and adol escents traumati zed by the 1991 war.

The work being carried out in those centres was suppl enented by a therapy
programe devel oped by the Mnistry of Labour, Family and Social Affairs.

27. Many children had cone to Slovenia as refugees and the Covernnent had
t aken neasures to acconmpbdate the refugee popul ation and integrate the
children into Slovenian schools.

28. M. BEBLER (Sl ovenia) said that the negative effects of the transition to
a market econony and the war had been mitigated by the fact that Slovenia had
not been actively involved in the conflict and, prior to the transition, had
enjoyed a relatively high standard of living, with the highest per capita
gross national product in the region. As a snmall and culturally conpact



CRC/ C/ SR 337
page 6

country, Slovenia had felt the consequences of such upheaval |ess acutely than
its neighbours. |In addition to the problem of child refugees, however, there
had been an increase in social problens, such as unenpl oynent and crine,
particul arly previously unknown types of violent crine. Child abuse and other
crimes against children had probably existed in the past, but had come to
light as a result of the new openness in Slovenian society. Despite the
difficulties the country faced, total expenditure on social benefits for
children had increased, as the Government was determined to counteract the
negative trends whi ch had taken shape since the country's independence in 1991
and which were partly the result of social and political conditions and

devel opnents in the region

29. M. MOMVBESHORA asked whether the ministers attending the sessions of the
Children's Parlianent had replied to the questions asked by the children

30. Ms. VALENGI C (Slovenia) said that ministers paid great attention to the
guesti ons asked at the neetings and responded to the reconmendati ons nade.

The bookl et on "School Rules" was one of the tangible results of such

i nteraction between children and nenbers of the Government. New | egislation
had, noreover, been adopted on the basis of many of the suggestions and
coments nmade by the Children's Parlianment, particularly on nmatters relating
to violence and tobacco and al cohol consunption

31. M. KOOSOV said that the age of crimnal responsibility, 14 years, was
too low He therefore wi shed to know whet her the Government had consi dered
changing that age Iimt and asked for further information on the |evel of
crimnality anong children thenselves. He also requested an expl anati on of

t he di screpancy between the age at which a child had the right to consult a
doctor wi thout the consent of his parents, which was set at 15 years, and the
age of sexual consent, which was 14 years

32. M. MOMBESHORA, also referring to the right to consult a doctor, asked
whet her there was a professional body nonitoring the ethical standards of
nmedi cal practitioners and the di spensing of drugs.

33. Ms. BADRAN asked whet her the age of consent to nmarriage was the sanme for
boys and girls. She would like to have further information on the educationa
neasure of confinenment to special organizations, which was applied to juvenile
del i nquents between 14 and 16 years of age and was referred to in paragraph 17
of the report.

34. Ms. BASIC (Slovenia) said that juveniles and children had a specia
position in Slovenia. In legal matters, children were considered as such up
to the age of 14 years and were not crinminally responsible. In view of the
definition of the child under the Convention and as a result of her persona
experience working with the victins of ill-treatnent and sexual abuse, she
agreed that the age of crimnal responsibility provided for in Slovenian

| egi sl ati on was too | ow.

35. In the case of offences comitted by children, the police carried out an
i nvestigation to ensure that the rights of the victimwere protected, but no

| egal proceedings were instituted agai nst child of fenders and provision was
made in the law for assistance or treatnent by the Centre for Social Wrk.



CRC/ C/ SR 337
page 7

Adult crinme was on the increase in Slovenia, but offences by children under 14
were declining sharply. At the beginning of the decade, some 2,000 of fences
by children had been recorded every year, but that figure had dropped to

bet ween 800 and 900.

36. In reply to the question about drugs, she said that many new initiatives
had been taken for the purpose of prevention. Consideration was being given
to the inclusion of new provisions in the legislation applicable in cases
where chil dren were abused by adults in connection with drugs, for exanple,
when they were used to transport drugs or were involved in drug dealing.
Fornmerly, the law had not recognized juveniles as victins in such cases,

al t hough they coul d be recogni zed as the perpetrators of such illega
activities.

37. A nunber of new neasures, based on the best European practice, had been
i ntroduced in 1995 in respect of the treatnent of juvenile offenders. The
earlier legislation was very narrow, concentrating largely on strict contro
by the Centre for Social Wrk and the possibility of detention in a
correctional centre in cases where the famly environment was not conducive to
re-education. The new neasures ranged froma warning to parental supervision,
stricter surveillance by a special care authority or regular visits to
disciplinary centres for a certain period. There were a nunber of open-plan
correctional centres and, after the age of 16, the nost usual neasure was to
send the juvenile offender to a special correctional institution or to the
juvenile prison in Celje.

38. Ms. BRVAR (Slovenia), referring to the inplenentation of the Convention
inthe field of health, said that an inportant change had been nade in the Law
on Health Care and Health Insurance. Under a new article 80, all children up
to the age of 19 had the right to a personal doctor at the primary care | evel
Usual |y the doctor was a specialist in paediatrics or school nedicine, but he
could in some cases be a general practitioner or a doctor wth postgraduate
training in the nedical care of wonen, children and youth. The aimwas to
achieve a high quality of care for children at the noment of first contact
with the health profession. The Law also provided for the right of the child
on reaching the age of 15 to choose his or her personal doctor. An extensive
network of outpatient clinics covered all children. There were 59 such
clinics for preschool children, 59 for children at school and 60 for wonen.

On average, each outpatient clinic covered 2,500 children up to the age of
six. Each outpatient clinic for school children covered sone 6,200

school chil dren and young persons and each outpatient clinic for wonen covered
an average of 14,600 wonen over the age of 13. As far as the nunber of
doctors avail abl e was concerned, the aimwas to have each paedi atrician cover
1,000 children up to the age of six, each school doctor to cover

2,300 children and each gynaecol ogi st to cover 7,300 wonen. It was estimated
that, in order to achieve the desired standard, a 30 per cent increase was
needed in the nunber of doctors overall. Only a 14 per cent increase was

necessary to achieve primary health care for all children

39. In reply to the question about the age of marriage, she said that,
according to the law, a child should be 18 in order to be able to marry. A
child could enter into marriage before that age, however, with the consent of
his or her parents. The age was the sane for boys and girls.



CRC/ C/ SR 337
page 8

40. Wth regard to the right to choose a personal doctor, she said that, on
reaching the age of 15, a girl was entitled to consult a gynaecol ogi st on her
own behal f and nake her own deci sion regardi ng abortion or other nedica
needs. There had perhaps been sonme m sunderstandi ng about the apparent

di screpancy between the age of consent to sexual relations, which was 14, and
the age of entitlenent to consult a doctor w thout the presence of the
parents, which was 15. On the face of it, there was a vacuum of one year in
which the child should have the right to seek nmedical care on its own in view
of the fact that it had the right to decide freely about engaging in sexua
rel ations.

41. M. KOOSOV said that that was precisely his concern. |If sexua

relati ons were not punishable after the age of 14, a girl of 14 mght well
engage in such relations perfectly legally. She might then, however, need to
consult a doctor with a viewto an abortion or other procedure, but she would
be unable to be able to do so on her own wi thout her parents. He believed it
woul d be desirable either to raise the age of sexual consent to 15 or to | ower
the right to consult a doctor without the presence of the parents to 14.

42. The CHAI RPERSON said that there appeared to be a definite need to
harmoni ze the legislation. Wuld the del egati on be prepared to defend that
position on returning to Sl oveni a?

43. Ms. BRVAR (Sl ovenia) said she agreed that there would seemto be such a
need. She felt, however, that the difficulty had ari sen because of
statistical arrangenents whereby children of 14 and 15 were classified in the
same group. A sinilar problemhad appeared in the case of the ages 18 and 19.
The age of majority was 18, but the statistical group included children up to
the age of 19. As far as the possibility of children to seek nedical help on
their own was concerned, nost school children knew their own doctors well and
could consult themon their owmn. The outpatient clinics were very close to
the children and children could have free access at any time to the doctors
there. She saw no reason why a child of 13, 14 or 15 could not seek nedica
care.

44, The CHAI RPERSON said that a problemof |aw was involved. |If the law said
that a child rmust be 15 to have the legal right to choose and consult his or
her own doctor without the parents' consent and a child of 13 or 14 attenpted
to do so, the doctor could refuse to see or treat the child. In order to
safeguard the right of the child, which was the Committee's basic concern,
there was definitely a need to harnonize the |egislation

45, M. KOOSOV drew the del egation's attention to paragraph 12 of the
report, which clearly stated that, under the Law on Health Care and Heal th

I nsurance, a child had the right to consult a doctor w thout the consent of
his or her parents after he or she had reached 15 years of age. A doctor
mght well treat a child of 12 or 13, but if he did so without the consent of
the parents, he would be committing a crimnal offence. There could be cases
where, at a later stage, the parents m ght disagree with the doctor's decision
and, in law, he would be crimnally responsible. If the age of consent was 14
and a girl of that age needed an abortion and went to a doctor without her
parents' know edge and the doctor gave her the hel p she needed, he woul d have
conmitted a criminal offence. He regarded the discrepancy as very serious and



CRC/ C/ SR 337
page 9

as constituting a danger to doctors, who would either have to refuse to give
nmedi cal help in such cases or to treat the child illegally and possibly incur
crimnal responsibility.

46. M. MOVBESHORA said that was partly why he had asked whether there was
any professional body in Slovenia which supervised nedical ethics.

47. Ms. BRVAR (Slovenia) said that her delegation agreed fully with the
poi nt that had been nade and would nmake every effort to see to it that the

laws in question were harnonized. 1In reply to M. Mnbeshora's question, she
said that there were associations of the kind he had nmentioned for every
profession in Slovenia, the so-called "extended professional collegiuns”. In

addition, there was a Medical Council within the Mnistry of Health Care and a
Sl ovene Medi cal Associ ation which had a special ethical arbitration comrittee
for cases of mal practice or professional error involving ethical issues. The
prof essional activities of paediatricians and school doctors were subject to
regul ar supervision and care was taken to see that all the doctors on the
registry in Slovenia conplied with the requirenment to engage in post-graduate
and further training.

48. The CHAI RPERSON invited the menbers of the Committee to comment on the
sections of the list of issues entitled "General principles" and "Gvil rights
and freedons".

49, Ms. BADRAN said that, according to the report (para. 23), children born
in legal wedl ock and those born out of |egal wedl ock had equal rights. Such
equality seened to be qualified, however, by the further statenent that those
rights could be enjoyed only after the identity of the father had been
ascertained. Did the child |lose any rights if that could not be done? What
was the position of children born of an extranarital association?

50. M. MOMBESHORA said that, according to paragraph 43 of the report, the
Law on Mass Medi a was designed to protect children and young people from

har nful broadcasts or published material produced in Slovenia. He asked what
machi nery there was to nonitor material com ng from outside.

51. M. KOOSOV noted that paragraph 45 of the report stated that nationa
television was required by law to protect children and young people from
programmes containing material which night affect their nental and physica
devel opnent. Were there any legislative, social or educational measures, to
protect young people fromthe undesirable effects of foreign television
progr ammes?

52. Par agraph 46 stated that religious education was adapted to the child's
religious or other conmitment or belief. Wo was responsible for choosing the
child s religion or belief and after what age was the child free to decide for
itself to change or to abandon that belief? According to paragraph 49 of the
report, torture was prohibited under the Constitution. Wre there any

provi sions prohibiting corporal punishnment? Was such puni shnent regarded as
the normal way of disciplining children within the fanmly or had the public
been made aware that other ways of exercising discipline were to be preferred?



CRC/ C/ SR 337
page 10

53. Ms. EUFEM O referring to paragraph 46 of the report, asked how the
child' s right to freedomto express its thoughts and opinions within the

fam |y was guaranteed. Could cases of violations of that right be dealt with
wi thout bringing themto court, for instance, by neans of counselling?

54, She had not fully understood the reply given earlier in respect of the
training of social workers. Wre they required to have a university degree
and to pass exam nations and did they have to obtain a licence in order to
practise?

55. She noted that paragraph 44 of the report stated that filns and ot her
programes liable to be harnful to children and young people could be
broadcast only between 11 p.m and 6 am Ws children's view ng of such
programmes subject to parental guidance and, if so, how much were parents
prepared to screen out unsuitable nmaterial? According to paragraph 47, the
child could exercise the right of association by taking part in various
cultural, recreational and social activities. How popular were those
activities and how many children actually took part in themin practice? Ws
any provision made for activities for children who had dropped out of schoo
and how woul d their attendance at such activities be nonitored?

56. Ms. VALENCI C (Slovenia) said that, as she had al ready expl ai ned, recent
| egislation required that all social workers practising in schools,
counselling centres and simlar institutions should hold a university degree.
After a probationary period of between six nonths and one year, they had to
sit a general qualifying exanination and, after that, would go on to sit a
further exam nation in the particular field in which they had chosen to
specialize. For nore than 30 years, social workers had been enployed in
schools in Slovenia as nmenbers of teams providing assistance and counsel ling
to children.

57. In reply to the question on the right of the child to freedom of thought,
consci ence and religion, she said that hitherto the [ aw had required that
parents or |egal guardians had to give consent for children up to 18 years of
age to attend classes in religious instruction, but it was planned to | ower
that age imt. Under new | egislation introduced in March 1996, religious
education, as well as instruction in ethnics, had been introduced in private
schools. Religious education classes were nornally held in church after

school hours, although, in small towns and rural areas, they could be held in
school s by special agreenent if perm ssion was requested by the parents.

58. Referring the questi on about what was done to hel p school drop-outs, she
said that a voluntary body, the League of Associations of Friends of Children
was very active in organizing sports and cultural activities for children in
the afternoons after school, at weekends and during holidays. There were also
United Nations Clubs at the local |evel which had special programes for
children, as well as many other organizations and societies. Geat efforts
had been made in recent years to deal with the problem of school drop-outs. A
speci al network had been set up to try to find appropriate occupations for
such children, to involve themin practical activities and to train themfor

j obs.



CRC/ ¢/ SR. 337
page 11

59. She enphasi zed t hat corporal punishment had never been part of Slovenia's
culture and that, like ill-treatnment of children in general, it was prohibited
by law. In recent years, a great deal of preventive work had been done on the
subject. Children had been nmade aware that any ill-treatnent from which they
suffered within the family need not be kept secret; indeed, they were
encouraged to informthe appropriate authorities if they had been subjected to
corporal punishnent, which, in her country's view, was an of fence against the
child alnost as serious as torture. Owing to the increased |evel of public
awar eness, the nunber of reported cases of corporal punishnment had increased
over a four year period from50 cases to 72, although she was convinced t hat
that did not reflect an actual increase in the corporal punishnent of

children, but, rather, the fact that children had beconme nore conscious of
their rights. However, since some cases went undetected, it would not be
realistic to claimthat there were no famlies in Slovenia who used corpora
puni shrrent to discipline their children

60. In reply to the question on the protection of children from pornography
and other offensive material, she said that broadcasts on national television
were regul ated by law and parents were always warned in advance about any
films or programes not suitable for children. No pornographic filns were
produced in Slovenia and both filnms and printed matter inported from abroad
were subject to strict control

61. As to the question on the effects on children of the mass nedia, she said
that all filnms and tel evision programes had to be prefaced by notices

i ndi cati ng whether or not they contained material unsuitable for children.
Violence in the nmedia was a probl em which was w dely discussed, for instance,
in the magazine "Children and the Fam ly", which provided information for
parents on many subjects. Lastly, parent/teacher associations held neetings
in schools at which parents could receive advice on how to deal with the

probl em

62. Ms. VOVK-ZELEZNI K (Sl ovenia), replying to the question on the rights of
children born out of wedlock, said that the Law on Matrinmony and Fam |y

Rel ati onshi ps stipulated that such children had the same rights as legitinmate
children. |In cases where the father was not known or did not recognize the
child as his own, articles 68 to 70 of that Law required that |ega
proceedi ngs should be instituted to establish paternity. However, in every
ot her respect children born out of wedl ock had the sanme rights as legitimte
chi | dren.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




